PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
7:00 PM, Wednesday, February 12,2025
Municipal Building — Glosserman Room
308 W. San Antonio St.

AGENDA

1. Callmeeting to order.
2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item.
3. Consider the Minutes of the January 22, 2025 meeting.

4. SUP-25-01. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Anna Bermudez and Kenneth Price
for a Specific Use Permit to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit (General Type) on Lat 1, Block 1,
Bermudez-Price Subdivision, consisting of 0.712 acres zoned RMD Residential Medium Density
District and located at 820 North Blanco Street.

5. SUP-25-02. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Alysa Grissom with Texas Freelance
Paralegals, LLC, for a Specific Use Permit to allow a Veterinary Hospital and Kennel on 0.724 acres
in the Original Town Lockhart, Block 43, part of Lot 4, zoned CHB Commercial Heavy Business
District, located at 605 East Market Street

o

Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

7. Adjournment.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas, at 11:30 a.m. on the 6'" day of February, 2025.



City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
January 22, 2025

MINUTES

Members Present: Philip Ruiz, Phil McBride, Manuel Oliva, Rick Arnic, Ron Peterson, Bradley

Lingvai

Members Absent: Juiia Haug

Staff Present: David Fowler, Kevin Waller, Romy Brossman

Visitors/Citizens Addressing the Commission:

1.

Call meeting to order. Chair Ruiz cailed the meeting to orderat 7:01 p.m.

Election of Officers for 2025.

Commissioner Peterson moved to nominate Chair Ruiz and Vice-Chair Oliva to continue as Chair
and Vice-Chair. Member Arnic seconded, and the motion passed with a vote of 6 - 0.

Citizen comments not rela_ted to an agenda item. None

Consider the Minutes of the December 11, 2024 meeting.

Commissioner Arnic moved to approve the December 11, 2024, minutes. Commissioner Lingvai
seconded, and the motion passed by a vote of 6 - 0.

FP-24-09. Consider a request by Biayne Stansberry for approval of a revised Final Plat for GAH

Subdivision, consisting of 21.4366 acres on property in the Francis Berry Survey, Abstract No. 2,

zoned CLB (Commercial Light Business) and RHD (Residential High Density), and located at 1505
S. Main St. and 221 W. MLK Jr. Industrial Blvd., including a Variance to Chapter 52, “Subdivision
Regulations,” Section 52-76(d), to allow two flag lots in place of the one flag lot limitation.

Kevin Waller presented the proposed plat. The proposed layout had two lots, one of which
includes the existing Golden Age Home building and the other being undeveloped land. A new
Golden Age Home facility is proposed to be constructed on the vacant lot with the existing
facility to be repurposed or redeveloped in the future. According to Plat Note 9, four-foot-wide
public sidewalks will be constructed along the subdivision frontages with the future South
Medina Street and Sunset Drive extensions. In addition, a variance has been requested by the
applicant to allow both proposed lots to be flag lots with less that the minimum required lot
frontage along South Main Street. The current plat and variance request revises the plat and
variance that was approved by the Commission in April 2022, the approval period of which
expired in April 2023. The revised plat increases the depth of Lot 1 westward to the eastern
boundary of the planned right-of-way extension of South Medina Street. A City Council hearing
-1-
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 1-22-2025



will take place on Tuesday, January 21 for the abandonment of undeveloped rights-of-way, one
of which currently exists on the western portion of proposed Lot 1 and was originally part of the
development plans of a previous owner.

Upon review of the variance request, Staff believes it warrants approval since the only way to
allow for access and development of the vacant area proposed as Lot 1is to allow both lots as
flag lots. The South Medina Street extension to the immediate west of the subdivision will occur
at some point in the future, thereby providing additional access to the new Golden Age Home
facility, which might not happen until after the new facility is constructed and in operation.

Blayne Stansberry of Stansberry Engineering Co., 605 Arroyo Vista Dr. Manchaca, TX, showed
her own presentation of the existing plat and proposed plat. Ifthe revised plat and variance are
denied, it would prohibit Golden Age Home the option of selling the existing building for which
they have no future plans. Maintenance of the 1950’s era building would be expensive and
would force Golden Age Home to be a landlord diverting their focus from elder care.

Chair Ruiz asked if another lot configuration is possible, why the flag ot configuration?

Ms. Stansberry responded this could not be done according to code because each lot must have
frontage on a right-of-way. That may be available at a later date, but it can’t be done currentiy.

The only way to submit a site plan for this building is to have a legal lot which would be -

subdivided and a flag lot. In the future, with the extension of South Medina, there will be
additional right-of-way access.

Mr. Waller reported that staff recommends approval of the plat and variance with two
conditions including 1) abandonment of the right-of-way intersecting the west portion of Lot 1
and 2) revise Plat Note 9 to read - four foot wide public sidewalks shall be constructed along the
Lot 1 frontage of the future South Medina Street extension and along the Lot 1 frontage of the

future Sunset Drive extension by the owner of Lot 1 at the time the street extensions are -

constructed.

Commissioner Lingvai expressed concern of a property owner's desire to build a sidewalk
adjacent to another contractor building a street. He asked if it would be possible to set aside
the money in a fund so that whoever builds the street also builds the sidewalk?

David Fowler reported that most likely the street will be built by the same applicant as the plat.
It will just be later and if not, whoever builds the street will build the sidewalk. A “fee in lieu of”
for the sidewalk could be done though costs may inflate at a later date. Another option is to
pre-build the sidewalk at the time a new building is constructed.

The Commission discussed other possibilities regarding who will fund and construct the sidewalk
and the South Medina Street extension.

Commissioner Peterson moved to approve FP-24-09 with the two recommended conditions
including (1) abandonment of the right-of-way traversing the west portion of proposed Lot 1 at
today’s (January 23, 2025) City Councit meeting; and (2) the revision of Plat Note 9 to require
that sidewalks along the future South Medina Street and Sunset Drive extensions be constructed

-2
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 1-22-2025



only at the time of the street extension construction. Commissioner Lingvai seconded, and the
motion passed with a vote of 6 - 0.

6. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

David Fowler came forward to state the next Planning and Zoning Meeting is scheduled for
February 12%. There were no items yet scheduled for that meeting, but there is a zoning case
scheduled for February 26,

7. Adjournment.

Commissioner Peterson moved to adjourn, and Commissioner Oliva seconded. The motion
passed by a unanimous vote, and the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m.

Approved:

(date)

Romy Brossman, Recording Secretary Philip Ruiz, Chair

-3
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 1-22-2025



SUP-25-01

SUBJECT PROPERTY

820 N BLANCO ST "]L

ZONING BOUNDARY

ADU - GENERAL TYPE Scale 1" = 200’ P 200 FT BUFFER






CASE SUMMARY

STAFF CONTACT: Evan Qlszewski, Senior Planner CASE NUMBER: SUP-25-01

REPORT DATE: February 5, 2025

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: February 12, 2025 -

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: Accessory Dwelling unit —~ General Type

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, with conditions

SUGGESTED CONDITIONS: No construction or use of the ADU shall octur prior to the recordation of the
plat combining the subject property and the iot to the south.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT(S): Kenneth Price and Anna Bermudez

OWNER(S): Kenneth Price and Anna Bermudez

SITE LOCATION: 820 North Blanco Street

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 1, Block 1, Bermudez-Price Subdivision
SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.712 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Residential -

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: RMD Residential Medium Density

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

CHARACTERISTICS OF PROPOSED USE: The subject property is currently zoned Residential Medium
Density. The lot”s dimensions are approximately 165 feet by 185 feet, for an area of approximately 30,500
square feet. The lot covers 0.712 acres and is in an area characterized by the same zoning and smaller lot
sizes. The Applicants request a Specific Use Permit for an Accessory Dwelling Unit — General type use.
The ADU-General type has a maximum size of 1,000 square feet or % of the main dwelling unit’s square
footage and requires two off-street parking spaces. This SUP is before the Commission because the
proposed ADU is 700 square feet, which is larger than the ADU - Limited type maximum of 600 square feet
or % of the main dwelling’s square footage.

The Applicants submitted a site plan showing the proposed ADU located at the south-eastern corner of
the property. The Applicants’ property has several other outbuildings used as accessories to the main
dwelling, but no existing ADU. The ADU will be adapted from an existing workshop which is already
located at the proposed spot. It will be twenty feet by thirty-five feet, with the long edge facing the
Applicants’ second lot to the south.

NEIGHBORHOOD COMPATIBILITY: The surrounding zoning classifications are Residential Medium Density
in all directions. The neighboring property to the east at 202 West Olive Street has an SUP for the Lodging
and Boarding House use which was granted in 2023 (SUP-23-09). The Future Land Use Map notes that
the property is within the new Plum Creek District and recommends single-family dwellings with ADUs as
suitable for the area.

The property abuts an empty lot to the south which is also owned by the Applicants and used as an
accessory yard to the primary dwelling. The Applicants are currently in the process of combining the
subject property and this southern lot. The Applicants recently constructed an eight-foot fence on the
eastern property line of the subject property and the lot to the south which screens their property from
the abutting residences to the east.



COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS: The proposed ADU — General must meet the requirements for the use
in Section 64-2 of the Lockhart Code of Ordinances, entitied “Definitions” and in Appendix | of the same
chapter. The proposed size of the ADU satisfies these requirements. The two parking spaces will be
provided on the property’s two driveways.

The setback standards in Appendix | of the zoning code are not metin the Applicants’ site plan. Recent
measurements provided by the Applicants show that the distance from the ADU to the southern lot line
is approximately 4.5 feet, six inches too close to the lot line to meet the five-foot setback required. The
scope of the renovation to the workshop is too large for the ADU to be exempt from the setbacks as a pre-
existing building under the Section 64-62 “Nonconforming buildings” standards. Typically, a variance to
the setbacks or a modification of the Applicants’ proposal would be required in similar situations.
However, in this case there is a combining plat underway to combine the subject property and the lot to
the south which would nullify the concern over the southern setback. Initially, the Applicants had
anticipated completing the plat process prior to applying for the SUP, but there have been delays in the
process. Since the existing part of the structure is partially demolished and exposed to the elements, the
Planning Department and Building Department agree that a decision on this SUP request with the
condition that no construction or use of the ADU shall occur prior to the plat’s recordation is acceptable.
Excepting the southern setback, the proposed ADU meets all code requirements.

ADEQUACY OF INFRASTRUCTURE: Vehicular access will be available from the driveways on North Blanco
Street. An eight-inch water line serves the property from North Blanco Street. The wastewater
infrastructure map shows a six-inch line also located on North Blanco Street.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None as of the date of this report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, with the condition that the Applicant complete and record the
plat combining the subject property and the lot to the south prior to any construction or use of the ADU
taking place.



]
S} JouI0d 3% 4G 10 TPIOORY [RBIG0 PITS MY Jo pLR HDRd 65 BWINGA, U] PRRIDIM PERP AQ SGOML
SUARM BIISOT 03 PRASALOD PURL JO 330N # 0 1B1U0D BN WRINDER M PUT FEREDO-STOL ¥ upunmuT
P g jo I8M00 33 H WL (sioheang epqung, paCEIS) punt) iud uou) peddes v o3 10 0o'goT
ARy ,0T 943 JO BuY 1EEM B4} Pus DESSOD-STOCH IUBLINISUY PRUDQUIW &AL M Pud RIFEND
FTOTH JUBUNAIRUT DIEE BT JO FRUN 1T S3Y T 3 SPUOIEE DO MM 00 SSABOP 0T 5 3ONIHL

ITLR H I M0 AN G 4y ARy
0T @ 4O BRI BIM IR pUL FLFCO0-GTORS IBONASUL PIES BUY JO JB0I03 BN DU 0 (JHORDAINIS SDILHM,,
PRdWEIG) pUnc) uid Ucy) paddud € 0] 3987 DO'BET HOHS DAIG IFWM JO DUJ LINGE MG PHD 5060 L T T
HEOTH JuSWRITINL plet B3 JC BUIT YUON 301 M 3 TRUGORE 0O NN 00 SSEIB0p 08 N DINZHL

IR GIUY SHIOD MM DU JD) TG BAHO 1IN M, 10 BRIT (ANOS OUT Piie bt ]
CIURIY YIION JO d4j) 3600 WY JO UONIDSINL DY PUN IR GLEEOO-STOEN JUMMMASUL peUof UL
OGN IR o LBWOT M B 1 [ sokaning ML, PaduiNis) puno) U o) padded 8 v DNINNIOAR

iEmee)
e pogLIBEp Ajlapnagied 0000 BURG PUN  $PI03MN IMDLIO PN JUT §O MESSDO-ETOLN FHPWNEUT
o) PEpI0Ie PERP Ag Xn 1B AU RaEEY 0F pRARAUGY PUN] 5 1040 B IS I® ONE puN EXR9L ‘AJunch
{IBMIRED O SpCODN HIUI0 W1 10 SLVEDC -RTOT i JUPUNZEUY Uj POt 0l POBD AQ [N 48 AT YIMIUDY
03 PAABAUGD PUE| j0 JIRI) X I IR SHE BUIeq PUY LT-¥ ABAINS MEYRDET AR Bl Jo wed ¥ Bupy
PUR 3hxa) AJUNOT HOMpIED HIENNSIOT IO AND Syl W) PRI pUN] JO [eaurd 40 TR WIRLISD ¥ JO py

NOIidINDSIE TYDIY

wiapy Ajurnon
qQuiodoy Joien

T UG g u) SEXEL *AROD [OMBIRD J0 SRISIAY ANtd BN L) ¢ e 3 L A
49 Anp u_mw.._.ﬂ...u o pRpciel Anp PUT ‘W T POPRe LT av ..s.?ﬂ.ﬂ...i:

bnfm!a » WU RIGSA 10 SHI BEM o HANE O SRIEYRIS BY UMM USR] oo a0}
SR A ATeiNy Of ARXEL ‘ASURCD (IMDIND JO5 PHE U] KIS AUNDD ‘QWOTION {01 T
THMTIYD S0 ALNDOD

SYXZL 40 V1S

GS ¥ ¥ J0ABAING DU
[RUES 0L pinys|Bay

—— w“_uai 1 AnYac
- s~

.l&.ﬂvﬁ ﬂjﬂmﬁ‘mrwls tﬂ&-«i BIM3 908 PUR puBY AW ‘#OIUTHL SSIN LM NI

*SBpR{MOUN AW 20 JENG OYF 03 OU0D pur
UNJ B puk wOMAIDAN S 304D AU JORUD DUNID BUF LT OpEW ABASNS ¥ [0 LORUINeSGitR 1304400 pun
SRR ¢ § Wi o Y3 AJE0 AQRIRY SIe ) Jo mms SoAoadts qnd PRAMSIORL ‘0iNufH ") AMag ‘Y

TIRMIIYS 40 ALNROD ’

SVxaldoatvis

9X0L ‘AUNCO 1OMPIBD ‘W0 jO AIID 84 U /1Y AGAING
HOY#00T] PJAG 64 jO IO 86408 Z1L0 jO UOIBIAPGNG ¥

UGISIAIPQRS E31d-ZEpnieg

10 J8id

sexay, o0 T
4oy pus uj 21jang AesoN R meain |
] LIONOBELL § b N
. i . WY b R0
ZRpTRUIAG

E,zmsseullﬂ%jlnegggﬁaﬁaggih

TEMAYI 40 ALNAGD
SYX3L 40 TLViS

S!:-B.!s-?!gﬁilg_nﬁ

TIAMAG JO ALNNOD
BVXAL 10 HiViS

14 \peuue)
ioaeugsgggggg_sf
TIRAIY 40 ALNNOD

SYIGIL 20 fLviE

F iG]
212l b

£ o TUSIIER YOI DNOHE SIN00Y PINERGULN PUE (It DATY
aahzﬁagggﬁisgilé.ogéaig_-ﬁﬁg
10 1paoil L jo Jied Aum 40 (r peacisns dewnt pue wAGWIN O3 JOBH B4 BAR BIUE Aytn Sand Aue
uu.sm-EIn.aS..B?_i-agau_xi 1I¥ JO 950 JRIGIND Y 10 MUBILGEED fj¥ QN BiT O} SUADER
IMBEG PUS ‘ucesty Umous SABIE Bue RGBS W) ‘aseio) SAND I O M S 03 KEDPep Ageey
af Sy ‘AMnoD |ARIRD LRUNIY o A R W NOISIAIOENS MOYd-ZIANWYIE Jo T NI0TE 0t
10 5% pejeuBisap bq o) pus Texp *Rnag UNMPIRD JO SPIOCRY IR0 B JO PEEEO0-STOTH MMAALLEUT
PR BLEEDD-FTOD JWRMNOSUY U] papIoar Juid S YO UMOYE PUR B4 JO SEUMG pRUBISBIUN BI DA

TIHMATYD 40 ALNNOD
SVXEA 4O dLViS

73
wua.‘.qmvuﬂ - 116




00-90850; oy

R Loty
Erenis pay ERGLBSE {2190,
PIS8L XL wapioon s

mﬂnuer)EJm

Eue.anmgg:

4 000ZD8E (2151 Jyg
Vi G

603: 1201 xog ‘s

e
dop
Aturoln
- - D ooy
t o
b" Lo . 5
’ ") R .
- HS TR W
9oy i
% joN

2pniieg uonsys pur Jpnuneg puty

000 -6E (F1g) "wogy
.H.A.I.H -l—ltz ..— h\-

‘O3 asuney 'GNYT 40 Haume oM (¢

Aasiog winpmy 30190 ) 1Oy pouox v ¢ RO e (2

Tror
‘a7 aung pagp JOETOIESOY R mung yisay o1 Buipiosaw ‘paaey pooy; 192048 ey oy
92X, 8u0Z pmydupe vy U0 40 Rlg wy, x, o2 pooLy Gj wy UMBYS 100wy (g

WED) )0 a0y PUR to vapy EF4'0 By wey ugy Duriuteq o0 aed
19 i) 1103 oy3 pus PLVEDO-S 0T Heumyeur pup FOSS00
M S5 im A spuaaee 00 Uy

B0 820180y 0% w ganny

-

splo’®

a0

T Reains apginy
i \
e
# M LELE] d i
spy ¥F h] : oy
RN tn-.ﬂ...cta'i piies o ,. “*p,h”mmi,
LR .
B.ﬁm\?%&aﬁ
Y R,

‘.Bw.um*vﬂ

g Ul
. wn i
U R

r—ﬂwc.c.wu&..

SHE
i LA

Uu_hm
-
. b $30gg.
HD_ "?,H,...... ;.,...? \..\_”ﬂ
En ......,,.“. TR
...._.. ik 0% 2120
L . Yk
P . ye1sti 0
“ & e spiood s ut
53 - wawn il
s { prut kol
] Y AR AN a4
- L aumv ’ Wit T,
' Hu._..-nw v Z
‘ —5 .3 gl WS
o LPo)
| aow, 3 0N -
»nd;
L 1 8 Paild
— h
LR 'X'R aoo
n.‘.o..ﬁ '
; . u
»usﬂ.wh S - .
ﬁﬂvﬁg
aﬁ&.ﬂﬁe...ia._n:a.s:u!i&.i«i
‘ au.ssfseous_snznu%i;gk

ssfcss.i_ssﬂh.ﬂﬁﬂum. _




6s” 10 ALLEY

A

\%ﬂ = P INIG
2013g - 2300w 3
| oI} AeT)
A RN
091 Ay ) 005

F\a
=
]
. |
Ay
3 -
- —
D T W
LAY
&N 82 S
et et s 3
ﬂ ftv..QO Ea ‘
N ;g,..ﬁ — _
L INEAq u.w .
I8
s
o
R |
33
S< g
2 <
M o= U4 0TS
?wﬁs
i

N, Grang &,

- 5c(l




LeAR

Proposes New LonsTte vetson

SETRAcS

10" —>

35

1/0!1

L P
N

: {
F

L S ,
I eaeeessn e
[ T “
: | ST0E
| | seut
| - L&' Feom
OH
i }
| !
| | |
? /
: 14" x e !
f
; OLD CONSTRwTTAN l
i w (10 RE REMOVED) |
I ' |
| :
B |
| 8 |
| 2 i
I |
t > i [
; [ :
‘ New VeAwTnG |
! { ExesTING) i
<§ 10 (& ADPIYLTED ;
4 b NOETR, \'wefri :
4 — i
E, VERTFY }
| i
|
t

o

— i

!

TROoF LINE ABVE




L INY Qmo%

, 95

. HE D
. m | m H _:m._“u‘ u.Q.M
.Im..\Mx\M... A KWTWJJM. . _ -
nel
= g
% ™
I 0073 B¥-Lr SIS
o |
40 W
PRIy | \ 2
@ \ # 8 ..\uxzahu 20073
7 A
A Yl ULILFD A z
ws L A gurs®
_,w GINHN
\M o T ;
AT
r , W _ ‘ — VAU A
s 5% s HS SHT _ ¥SER,C




_ 55
piry i
S S »
A 3 8.9
3 " -
gs! : o
Xy , Msﬂ
\N_Q:E\s
s

METLYNZ 73 10\



08

cIZ2LUTY (h
V<)

SIS UASHEY

\OTINNTT 3

ASW3

——




3
SR
=2
£
= 8
—

\n
A
™
LD
MM
S
Ll
by
™M
@

UOTLWNT7E LFAY)



_mm. - | “
Y,
N _ ) J-
¢ S % "%
_ 55
y

:_4«@@/@
1%

OTaNNZT) BN







SPECIFIC USE PERMIT APPLICATION
CITY OF

LOCkhart [512)398-3461 « FAX(512) 398-3833

TEXAS P.O. Box 239 + Lockhart Texas 78644
308 West San Antonio Street

APPLICANT/OWNER

AVNA Belmudee 61
APPLICANT NAME _KewnveTH P ce ADDRESS 72@ /Z/ (D LAN <o
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE 53 2- 253240 Lo # AT , %7 SCS

E-MAIL KPRy ceo GLo B VETE<Tiow Sysloms, oo

OWNERNAME S gmE ADDRESS SahE
oav-TiMe TeELepHONE (3 -IT-1(F 2
E-malL A Belrmupezq ol & CMAL, oM

PROPERTY

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION Y? O // gl/)m £
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) ?jwr\/\c% o

SIZE 2? ACRE(S) ZONING CLASSIFICATION @Wl D

EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) ﬁﬁ c_/( /V/J/&D

REQUESTED SPECIFIC USE
PROPOSED USE REQUIRING PERMIT M(/( - G‘W -F/(),‘;D«t-

CHARACTERISTICS OF PROPOSED USE, INCLUDING INDOOR AND OUTDOOR FACILITIES,
ANTICIPATED OCCUPANCY (NUMBER OF DWELLING UNITS, RESIDENTS, EMPLOYEES, SEATS, OR
OTHER MEASURE OF CAPACITY, AS APPLICABLE), GROSS FLOOR AREA, HOURS OF OPERATION,
AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS, IF NECESSARY.

f% wice J¢ ﬂ S;AA:\L Gueg,-f Hou,e jjfof

,/éﬂf.d%(/;x ol ﬂ”m’o Wi Use.

Aoy — 100 sq . &t




SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER CERTIFYING
THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO REPRESENT THE
PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow;
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions;
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; 7) Location, dimensions, and
surface type of walks and patios; 8) Location, type, and height of free-standing signs; fences, landscaping,
and outdoor lighting; 9) utility line types and locations; and, 10) any other proposed features of the site which
are applicable to the requested specific use.

APPLICATION FEE OF $25% PLU§ $150 PER ACRE, MAXIMUM OF $2,500,
APPLICATION FEE OF $§ ::5(2 0 PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART.

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE /f%mw/ ~ DATE QO’VK 2625
T o 14

OFFICE USE ONLY

ACCEPTED BY W RECEIPT NUMBER

paTe susmirten | = §-200M CASE NUMBERSUP - 25 . 0|

DATE NOTICES MAILED |-1L)-1.5 DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED |-30-1%

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING DATE l'“eJ-ﬂ | & ', %Lg

DECISION

CONDITIONS




SUP-25-02 i | SUBJECT PROPERTY
605 E MARKET ST [] ZONING BOUNDARY

-
™ 200 FT BUFFER

VETERINARY HOSPITAL AND KENNEL

Scale 1" = 200’






CASE SUMMARY

STAFF CONTACT: Evan Qlszewski, Senior Planner CASE NUMBER: SUP-25-02

REPORT DATE: February 5, 2025

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: February 12, 2025

APPLICANT'S REQUEST: Veterinary Hospitals and Kennels use

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, with conditions

SUGGESTED CONDITIONS: Add two horizontal parking spaces to the west driveway and paint the six on-
site parking spaces (one ADA-accessible with signage}.

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT(S): Alyssa Grissom

OWNER(S): Texas Freelance Paralegals, LLC, Alyssa Grissom

SITE LOCATION: 605 East Market Street

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Part of Lot 4, Block 43, Original Town of Lockhart
SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.724 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Offices and warehouse

ZONING CLASSIFICATION: CHB Commercial Heavy Business

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

CHARACTERISTICS OF PROPOSED USE: The subject property is zoned Commercial Heavy Business. The
lot’s dimensions are irregular, with a large flag to the rear of the property and an approximately seventy-
foot frontage on East Market Street, which is maintained for about 150 feet to the rear of the building. It
is approximately 31,500 square feet, or 0.724 acres. The subject property is located in a transition from
commercial to residential uses to the east of downtown. The immediate area has residences and
businesses zoned RMD, RHD, and CHB. Historically, the area had small businesses and homes side-by-
side. Today, East Market Street divides the principally-residential area to its south from the commercial
area to the north.

The Applicant requests a Specific Use Permit for the Veterinary Hospitals and Kennels use to allow a dog
daycare and grooming establishment named “Chisholm Tails” in the warehouse comprising the rear half
of the existing office. Staff contacted the Applicant and notified them about the need for an SUP for this
use in the CHB district after seeing advertisements for the business online. Currently, the Applicant is in
the Certificate of Occupancy process to open for grooming appointments only, which is allowed in the
district by-right. The boarding business will begin if the SUP is granted. The Applicant submitted a site
plan showing the proposed business’ location on- the site and identifying the part of the building to be
used. The existing office will remain in the front half of the building and Chisholm Tails will have an
entrance on the eastern side. Parking is located at the front of the building ‘and on the eastern side, and
up to two additional spaces could be included between the building and the western property line.

NEIGHBORHOOD COMPATIBILITY: The surrounding zoning classifications are RMD to the east, RMD and
CHB to the west, RHD and RMD to the south, and IH to the north. Lotsizes in this area are small by current
standards: the East Market Street corridor features many similar properties with structures built close to
the road and minimal parking. Many structures in the area were built more than fifty years ago and have
been repurposed over time. The subject property shares these characteristics and is perhaps more
suitable for uses without all-day traffic like the proposed use.



COMPLIANCE WIiTH STANDARDS: The proposed use is focused in the building. All kennels and grooming
facilities are indoors. The larger part of the lot which borders the IH property to the north, RMD property
to the east, and CHB property to the west is fenced for a dog run. The existing building meets the setback
and other requirements for the CHB district, excepting the parking requirements.

Four striped parking spaces are provided facing the building’s East Market Street frontage. Two are
provided on the eastern side of the building. Based on the 3,600 square-foot size of the building, 16
parking spaces {including one handicapped-accessible space) are required under the district’s standards.
The site as currently configured has six parking spaces.

Changing parking standards and building additions over the years have caused several parking variances
to be presented to the Zoning Board of Adjustment. The most recent case, ZV-13-04, granted a variance
from sixteen to five spaces at the time the building was expanded to its current size. The staff report
accounted for the challenging topography of the site, which declines to the rear of the building, and the
pre-existing placement of the building on the lot which makes additional parking in front impossible. This
decision granted the variance to the entirety of the 605 East Market Street property, which means it
applies to the rear portion of the building. However, since the Applicant’s proposed use may generate
more traffic than the existing office, proposes to employ seven to twelve people {though the Applicant
state only two will be present at each shift), and must share parking with the existing office, Staff strongly
recommended finding additional parking options for the business. ‘

Based on this recommendation, the Applicant negotiated a lease with the property owner at the retail
store directly south across East Market Street for an additional five parking spaces. The Applicant has also
stated that adding parking along the building’s west driveway is possible. There are currently eleven
leased and striped spaces. Staff estimates that a total of 13 spaces are feasible on-site including the area
to the west of the building. This arrangement technically satisfies the parking requirement and would
maximize on-site parking, providing seven spaces for pick-ups and drop-offs {assuming the four spaces in
front are used by the office and two are used by Chisholm Tails employees).

ADEQUACY OF INFRASTRUCTURE: An eight-inch water line and a twelve-inch wastewater line serve the
subject property from East Market Street. Access to the site is provided by the driveway and parking along
the East Market Street frontage.

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None as of the date of this report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval, with the requirement that the Applicant adds two horizontal
parking spaces to the west driveway and paints the six on-site parking spaces (one ADA-accessible with
signage).



CITY OF LOCKHART - SITE PLAN

APPLICANT NAME: /Ll < [rrisiom PHONE:_3)2 ~S77 -05°3§

SITE ADDRESS:_/(*$ & Mehes St

PERMIT NUMBER: ; DATE:__[/25/2p25

PROPOSED WORK: OU/[° f&f Keane! vte

A
- /
e 18— /V
AN}
(7]
Q
=
m—-
%)
(.?Z--w'z' 1
!
CE R

Please indicate the following:

1.
.

3.

North arrow, scale of the drawing (e.g., 17 = 50 feet), property lines with dimensions, and abutting
streets and alleys;

Outline the location, size, and type of all structures with labels indicating whether existing or proposed;
show roof overhangs as dotted lines;

Distances between all existing and/or proposed structures (measuring from roof overhang, if any) as
well as from all existing and/or proposed structures to all property lines;

Location, type, and width of all known easements; and

Location, dimensions, and surface material of existing or proposed driveways and off-street parking
areas; specify the number of provided and required parking spaces. Planning staff can assist with this
requirement.



CITY OF LOCKHART
193/595
225/500

ICE HOUSE

DAVID DALTON
255/437
0.934 ACRES

FRED M. FARR

R = 1484.95'
A = 79.41
CH = 79.40'
BRG = S 57'18°32" E

0.724 Ac.
LINDA J. PARKS

468/645
0.724 ACRES

Z SINGLE
446/813 =) STORY
DAN W. SCHULLE & a ) BUILDING
\ DALIA J. SCHULLE R
\ #201703691 2 (=]
3
LEGEND \ -
=
. 5/8" REBAR FOUND (UNLESS NOTED) ‘&
(@) 1/2" REBAR SET W/CAP g
STANPED JE. GARON RPLS 4303 he
—— WIRE FENCE
——//——  WOO0D FENCE
¢ ] POWER POLE
e et OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LUINE
(BRG.—DIST.)

RECORD CALL

SCHEDULE "B ITEMS ADDRESSED:

10(g) NOT SUBJECT TO 100" EASEMENT TO BASTROP AND HOUSTON
RAILROAD COMPANY RECORDED IN YOL. 5, PAGE 248, D.R.C.C.T.

10(e) NOT SUBJECT TO EASEMENT TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART
RECORDED IN VOL. 265, PG. 636, D.R.C.C.T.

10(i) SUBJECT TO 20’ EASEMENT RECORDED IN VOL. 502, PG. 101,
DR.C.C.T. (SHOWN)

TO THE OWNERS, LIEN HOLDERS AND BURCHARD ABSTRACT CORPORATION

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED HEREON IS LOCATED IN ZONE
NOT WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD HAZARD AREA AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP, PANEL NO. 48055C0120E EFFECTIVE JUNE 19, 2012

@ AMES E. GARON & ASSOC.

LAND SURVEYORS & CIVIL ENGINEERS
Firm Reg. #10058400 & F—20,

185 McAllister Road

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY WAS THIS DAY MADE ON THE GROUND OF THE PROPERTY
DESCRIBED HEREON AND IS CORRECT, AND THAT THERE ARE NO DISCREPANCIES, SHORTAGES IN AREA, BOUNDARY LINE
CONFLICTS, ENCROACHMENTS, OVERLAPPING OF IMPROVEMENTS, VISIBLE UTILITY LINES OR ROADS IN PLACE, EXCEPT AS SHOWN
HEREON, AND THAT SAID PROPERTY HAS ACCESS TO AND FROM A DEDICATED ROADWAY, EXCEPT AS SHOWN HEREON.

SCALE: 1"= 30'

BEARINGS SHOWN ARE GRID NORTH
BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS FOR
TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE
SYSTEM "CENTRAL ZONE" NADB3.

FRANK MENDIOLA &
SYLVIA MENDIOLA
508,/731

X" AND IS

DECEMH.E:R 23 2021

AFY

Bastrop, Texas 78602
(512) 303-4185
Jgaron@austin.rr.com
www. jamesegaren.com

© 2021 All Rights Reserved by James E. Garon & Associales
Use of this survey for any purposes other than this tronsaction s prohibited

REFERENCE: ALYSA S. GRISSOM & DDNALDLH.. éRfSSDM G.F. NO.: 2021630

ADDRESS: 605 E. MARKET STREET, LOCKHART, TEXAS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 0.723 ACRE BEING A PORTION OF LOT 4, BLOCK 43,
CITY OF LOCKHART, MAP OR PLAT RECORDED IN

VOLUME G, PAGE 507, D.R.C.C.T.
FIELD BOOK:

FILE: S \Counties\Coldwell \City of Lockhart\lockhart\Blk 43\99921.dwg




SPECIFIC USE PERMIT APPLICATION
CITY OF

LOCkhart (512) 398-3461 » FAX[5]12] 398-3833

TEXAS PO. Box 239 + Lockhart Texas 78644
308 West San Antonio Street

APPLICANT/OWNER
APPLICANT NAME A\ V! Griss om ADDRESS (405 E MG\l Shvr=e)
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE _S\2Z -5 11-053% Lo\ ok TTY TEGHY

E-MAIL_G\JSG =S - QeSS own @%Pﬂggg.um

OWNER NAME “T @ y c.&, ’Fer,\cmctr?CWU\Qf-\p,\\S ADDRESS b 05 € Mo X Sownen i

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE __ S \2- S\ 1-0%3S oo oor UYL T1IR LMY
E-MAIL __ o\ \3Sc ) XY ole ™A
PROPERTY

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION _ L0 05 € . M\ X S\ oclhayt T TXIRHY
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) __ O 1. L oc\c\(\c\rk\\‘a\gc\cu’% i LA

sIZzE O\ 24 ACRE(S) ZONING cuassiFicaTion _((, B 1

EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) O F(vece S ! l,nmhouse

REQUESTED SPECIFIC USE

PROPOSED USE REQUIRING PERMIT o dowtore [Bvard: e\ |6 room 1‘%
CHARACTERISTICS OF PROPOSED USE, INCLUDING INDOOR AND OUTDOOR FACILITIES,
ANTICIPATED OCCUPANCY (NUMBER OF DWELLING UNITS, RESIDENTS, EMPLOYEES, SEATS, OR
OTHER MEASURE OF CAPACITY, AS APPLICABLE), GROSS FLOOR AREA, HOURS OF OPERATION,
AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS, IF NECESSARY.
=12 & N\'Ip\ot:\)@eS

2600 50kt 1hdoors

Tam- T pm (mF); J0-d Sat ; closec] Sunrlay

30 m(/aoméa latine (5, play pmea, marh rophs. du%&%&of yarc/

il 5,1,9{67{,(,0) 14
%wu r( 3 Lf?‘ﬂ?&% }Oﬁ 2 ¥ Q/!w‘.r# }/tqp{chc,A Mg,,rg aug.l. u/k,/}(r %,;,,, ///[)MJJ/ berert $F.



SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER CERTIFYING
THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO REPRESENT THE
PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

SITE PLAN, SUBMITTED ON PAPER NO LARGER THAN 11" X 17", SHOWING: 1) Scale and north arrow;
2) Location of site with respect to streets and adjacent properties; 3) Property lines and dimensions:
4) Location and dimensions of buildings; 5) Building setback distances from property lines; 6) Location,
dimensions, and surface type of off-street parking spaces and loading areas; 7) Location, dimensions, and
surface type of walks and patios; 8) Location, type, and height of free-standing signs; fences, landscaping,
and outdoor lighting; 9) utility line types and locations; and, 10) any other proposed features of the site which
are applicable to the requested specific use.

APPLICATION FEE OF $250, PLUS $150 PER ACRE, MAXIMUM OF $2,500,
APPLICATION FEEOF $___ 255.40 __ PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART.

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE __ (1 %Q(% 'L_J\:sggm DATE | /2.3 J’LO?/S

OFFICE USE ONLY

ACCEPTED BY _¢_ ()5S Z9WSK] RECEIPT NUMBER R¢| 344 6S2
DATESUBMITTED _ | / 2% /7025 CASENUMBERSUP-_2S - O
DATE NOTICES MAILED __/~21-2015 DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED __I- 30- 202§

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING DATE __ Z / l@ T E@LS

DECISION

CONDITIONS




LEASE AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF CALDWELL 8

This LEASE AGREEMENT (“Lease”) is made and entered into as of the

Commencement Date (hereinafter defined), by and between HECTOR GARZA RANGEL

. (“Landlord”) and CHISHOLM TAILS DOG DAYCARE, LL.C, a Texas limited liability
company, (”Tenant”), as follows:

Lease Grant. Subject to these terms, provisions and conditions hereinafter set
forth, and in consideration of the covenants of payment and performance stipulated
“herein, -Landlord has leased unto Tenant the following described real property in
CaldwelLCounty, Texas, (the “Leased Premises”):

Jhﬂ—(ﬁj p;arﬁing spots in the parking lot located at 604 E.

MARKET STREET, LOCKHART, TEXAS 78644, more
particularly described as O.T. LOCKHART, BLOCK 42, LOT
PT 4, STORE AND STORAGE.

Term. The Lease shall be on a month-to-month basis and shall commence on
February 1, 2025 (the “Commencement Date”) and continue month-to-month until
terminated by either party.

Use. Tenant has the right to use the Leased Premises only for parking for its
employees and/or customers. Tenant shall not block the driveway for the residence
located at 602 E. Market Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644 nor shall it block the dumpster
located on the Leased Premises. Tenant is limited to five parking spots or a total of five
vehicles on the Leased Premises.

Rental Payments. Commencing on the Commencement Date and continuing
thereafter throughout the Term, Tenant shall pay to the Landlord $100.00. Rent shail be
due and payable on the first day of each calendar month during the Term, and Tenant
hereby agrees to so pay all rent to Landlord in the manner described hereafter:

Indemnity, Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant, in agents, servants, employees,
contractors, customers, or invitees, by any act, omission or neglect of Tenant, its agents,
servants, employees, contractors, customers, or invitees, and Tenant agrees to indemnify



and hold Landlord harmless from all liability and claims for any such damage. Tenant
shall not be liable to Landlord, or to Landlord’s agents, servants, employee’s, contractors,
customers, or invitees for any damage to person or property caused by any act, omission
or neglect of Landlord, its agents, servants, employees, contractors, customers, or
invitees, and,Landlord agrees to indemnify and hold Tenant harmless from all claims for
such damage. The preceding sentences shall apply only when the cause is the concurrent
result of action or negligence of the indemnitor, its agents, servants, employees,
contractors, customers, or invitees other third party and not of any concurrent action of
the indemnitee or its agents, servants, employees, contractors, customers, or invitees. In
any situation inVolvinig injury, death or damage resulting from the concurrent action Or
negligence of the indemnitor and the indemnitee, or any of their agents, servants,
employees, contractors, customersor invitees, each party as indemnitor shall indemnify
‘the other party as the indemnitee to the extent, but only to the extent, of the liability
attributable to its actions or negligence or the action ornegligence of its agents, servants,
attributable to its actions or negligence or the actor negligence of its agents, servants,
employees, contractors, customers or invitees. The foregoing indemnity obligations shall
include reasonable attorney’s fees, investigation costs, court costs and expenses incurred
in connection with any claim or demand which is covered by the indemnities hereunder.
~ Tenant agrees that all personal property upon the Leased Premises shall be at the risk of
Tenant only, and that Landlord shall not be liable for. Any damage thereto or loss, thereof
or disappearance thereof. The provisions hereunder shall survive the termination of this
Lease with respect to any damage, injury or death occurring prior to such termination, or
after termination during any period during which Tenant is engaged in removing any
property it is permitted to remove under this Lease.

Right to Enter. Landlord shall have the right to enter the Leased Premises and
any building or other improvements thereon at any time and will use reasonable efforts
to minimize disruption of Tenant’s business operations on the Leased Premises.

Notices Any notice or request required by this Lease must be in writing, and may,
unless otherwise in this Lease expressly provided, be given or served by depositing the
same in the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, and certified and addressed to
the party to be notified, with return receipt requested, orby delivering the same in person
to such party (or to an officer of such party), or by telecopy, when appropriate, addressed
to the party to be notified. Notice deposited in the mail in the manner hereinabove
described shall be effective from and after such deposit. Notice given in any other manner
shall be effective only if and when received by the party to be notified. For purposes of
notice the addresses of the parties shall, until changed as herein provided, be as follows:



For Landlord: Hector Rangel
1407 N Pecos Street
Lockhart, Texas 78644

For Tenant: Chisholm Tails Dog Daycare, LLC
605 E. Market Street
Lockhart, Texas 78644
Lied - DOO\ »
Governing Law. This Lease and all the rights and obligations of the parties hereto
shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Texas. Venue for any action hereunder shall be Caldwell County, Texas.

EXECUTED IN MULTIPLE ORIGINAL COUNTERPARTS, which constitutes but
one anc_i the same-instrument, effective as of February 1, 2025.

LANDLORD: . HEGTOR GARZA RANGEL
// 04% (l / l/%}/lo‘
Namb: Hector Garza Range’l/ . Date
TENANT; CHISHOLM TAILS DOG DAYCARE, LLC
\ 27 [202¢
Date ‘

Title: Managing Member



